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with the higher number of occurrences, with an exception for passenger ships with a greater number of 
occurrences in EU waters: being in the Mediterranean Sea and the Baltic Sea. 

After a decrease in the traffic density around Europe in 2020, more intense for passenger ships than for cargo 
ships and fishing vessels, traffic density values increased again in 2021 with values still under the levels in 2019. 

EU Member States investigative bodies have launched 984 investigations over the period from 2014 to 2021 and 
832 safety investigation reports were made public. In 2021, 84 investigations were reported to have been launched, 
meaning a decrease of 7.7% in comparison with the year 2020 and a decrease of 28.2% in comparison with the 
year 2019. 

From 2014 to 2021, there was a total of 563 lives lost in 376 marine casualties. After a continuous important 
decrease until 2017 when 45 fatalities were recorded, an increase up to 67 was recorded in 2019. 43 fatalities were 
recorded in 2020 and 36 in 2021. 89.3% of the victims were crew members. The main event resulting in fatalities 
was collision, when it related to a ship, and slipping / falls when it related to a person. 

From 2014 to 2021, there was a total of 6,155 injuries in 5,394 marine casualties and incidents. From 2014 to 2019 
the average of injuries was 825, there was a decrease to 587 in 2020 and a new increase to 621 in 2021, a 25.8% 
less injuries than in 2019. 84.6% of the injuries were crew members. The main event resulting in injuries was 
collision, when it related to a ship, and slipping / falls when it related to a person. 

Fatalities and injuries indicators based on the number of the person on board for each person category (crew 
member, passenger or other) in the EU fleet were developed. The trends of these indicators for crew and 
passengers were like the trends in number of fatalities and injuries. 

In 2021, 14 ships were lost, 650 ships were damaged, 219 ships were considered unfit to proceed, 759 required 
shore assistance, 368 ships required towing and 21 ships were abandoned. There were 340 Search and Rescue 
(SAR) operations. In general, this means a reduction in the consequences to ships, in comparison with previous 
years and an increase in the support to vessels after the marine accidents and incidents. 

A significant decrease in the reported number of pollutions was noted in year 2019, 2020 and 2021. However, in 
2021 the number of pollutions was higher than in the two previous years. This reduction was significant for 
passenger ships, service ships and fishing vessels. 

From analysis conducted in safety investigations, it was determined that, from 2014 to 2021, 59.6% of accident 
events was due to human action and 68.3% of the contributing factors were related to human behaviour. Analysing 
both human action events and human behaviour contributing factors jointly, human element relates to 81.1% of the 
investigated marine casualties and incidents. These trends are common for all ship types.  

Over the period from 2014 to 2021, the total number of safety recommendations issued, and actions taken reported 
was 2,329. 45.5% of the issued safety recommendations and actions taken were dealing with ship related 
procedures. 

 
 Photo credit GAMA/Portugal. 
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9. Material damage : 
in relation to a marine casualty means: 

.1  damage that: 
.1.1  significantly affects the structural integrity, performance or operational characteristics of marine 

infrastructure or a ship; and 
.1.2  requires major repair or replacement of a major component or components; or 

.2  destruction of the marine infrastructure or ship. 

10. Serious marine casualty : 
this term shall be understood in accordance with the updated definition contained in Circular MSC-MEPC.3/Circ.3 
of the IMO Maritime Safety Committee and Marine Environment Protection Committee of 18th of December 2008; 
it says: 
Serious marine casualties are casualties to ships which do not qualify as very serious marine casualty and which 
involve a fire, explosion, collision, grounding, contact, heavy weather damage, ice damage, hull cracking, or 
suspected hull defect, etc., resulting in: 

-  immobilization of main engines, extensive accommodation damage, severe structural damage, such as 
penetration of the hull under water, etc., rendering the ship unfit to proceed, or 

-  pollution (regardless of quantity); and/or 
-  a breakdown necessitating towage or shore assistance. 

11. Serious injury : 
means an injury which is sustained by a person, resulting in incapacitation where the person is unable to function 
normally for more than 72 hours, commencing within seven days from the date when the injury was suffered.  

12. Severe damage to the environment : 
means damage to the environment which, as evaluated by the State(s) affected, or the Flag State, as appropriate, 
produces a major deleterious effect upon the environment. 

13. Substantially interested State : 
means a State: 

.1  which is the Flag State of a ship involved in a marine casualty or incident; or 

.2  which is the Coastal State involved in a marine casualty or incident; or 

.3  whose environment was severely or significantly damaged by a marine casualty (including the 
environment of its waters and territories recognized under international law); or 

.4  where the consequences of a marine casualty or marine incident caused, or threatened, serious harm to 
that State or to artificial islands, installations, or structures over which it is entitled to exercise 
jurisdiction; or 

.5  where, as a result of a marine casualty, nationals of that State lost their lives or received serious 
injuries; or 

.6  that has important information at its disposal that the marine safety investigating State(s) consider 
useful to the investigation; or 

.7  that for some other reason establishes an interest that is considered significant by the marine safety 
investigating State(s). 

14. Territorial sea : 
refers to the area within which the sovereignty of a Coastal State extends, beyond its land territory and internal 
waters and, in the case of an archipelagic State, its archipelagic waters, to an adjacent belt of sea, described as 
the territorial sea. It is a belt of coastal water extending at most 12 nautical miles (22.2 km; 13.8 mi) from the 
baseline (usually the mean low-water mark) of a Coastal State. (UNCLOS Section 1 of Part II) 

  



http://www.emsa.europa.eu/implementation-tasks/accident-investigation.html
https://portal.emsa.europa.eu/emcip-public/#/dashboard
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- Flooding : refers to a casualty when a vessel takes water on board and can be: 
- Progressive : if the water flow is gradual. 
- Massive : if the water flow is extensive. 

- Hull failure : 
a failure affecting the general structural strength of the ship. 

- Loss of control : 
a total or temporary loss of the ability to operate or manoeuvre the ship, failure of electric power, or to contain 
on board cargo or other substances: 

- Loss of electrical power : is the loss of the electrical supply to the ship or facility; 
- Loss of propulsion power : is the loss of propulsion because of machinery failure; 
- Loss of directional control : is the loss of the ability to steer the ship; 
- Loss of containment : is an accidental spill or damage or loss of cargo or other substances carried 

on board a ship. 
- Missing : 

a casualty to a ship whose fate is undetermined with no information having been received on the loss and 
whereabouts after a reasonable period of time. 

- Non-accidental events : 
are intentional events as a result of illegal or hostile acts therefore they are not marine casualties or incidents. 
They are:  

- Acts of war : any act, against a ship or the people on board, by a State that would effectively terminate 
the normal international law of peacetime and activate the international law of war;  

- Criminal acts : any crime, including an act, omission, or possession under the laws of a State or local 
government, which poses a substantial threat to people on board of a ship or to property (e.g. terrorism, 
sabotage, piracy); 

- Illegal discharge : is an intentional discharge of polluting substances, oil or other noxious substances, 
from ships; and  

- Other : other intentional act that incur loss of or damage to a ship or environmental damage or harm 
to people on board. 

Non-accidental events are not considered as marine casualties or incidents and are not covered by the scope 
of the Accident Investigation Directive (2009/18/EC). 

3. Contributing factor : 
is a condition that may have contributed to an accidental event or worsened its consequence (e.g., man/machine 
interaction, inadequate illumination). 

4. Occurrence with person(s) : 
are grouped under deviations , which consist in the description of the event deviating from normality leading to 
the accident: 

- Deviation due to electrical problems, explosion, fire - Not specified  
- Electrical problem due to equipment failure - leading to indirect contact 
- Electrical problem - leading to direct contact 
- Explosion 
- Fire, flare up 
- Other Deviations not listed above 

- Deviation by overflow, overturn, leak, flow, vaporisation, emission  
- Solid state - overflowing, overturning 
- Liquid state - leaking, oozing, flowing, splashing, spraying 
- Gaseous state - vaporisation, aerosol formation, gas formation 
- Pulverulent material - smoke generation, dust/particles in suspension/emission of 
- Other Deviations not listed above 
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- Breakage, bursting, splitting, slipping, fall, collapse of Material Agent  
- Breakage of material - at joint, at seams 
- Breakage, bursting - causing splinters (wood, glass, metal, stone, plastic, others) 
- Slip, fall, collapse of Material Agent - from above (falling on the victim) 
- Slip, fall, collapse of Material Agent - from below (dragging the victim down) 
- Slip, fall, collapse of Material Agent - on the same level 
- Other deviations not listed above 

- Loss of control (total or partial) of machine, means of transport or handling equipment, handheld 
tool, object, animal  

- Loss of control (total or partial) - of machine (including unwanted start-up) or of the material being 
worked by the machine 

- Loss of control (total or partial) - of means of transport or handling equipment, (motorised or not) 
- Loss of control (total or partial) - of hand-held tool (motorised or not) or of the material being worked 

by the tool 
- Loss of control (total or partial) - of object (being carried, moved, handled, etc.) 
- Loss of control (total or partial) - of animal 
- Other Deviations not listed above 

- Slipping - Stumbling and falling - Fall of persons  
- Fall of person - to a lower level 
- Slipping - Stumbling and falling - Fall of person - on the same level 
- Fall overboard of person 
- Other deviations not listed above 

- Body movement without any physical stress (generally leading to an external injury)  
- Walking on a sharp object 
- Kneeling on, sitting on, leaning against 
- Being caught or carried away, by something or by momentum 
- Uncoordinated movements, spurious or untimely actions 
- Other Deviations not listed above 

- Body movement under or with physical stress (generally leading to an internal injury)  
- Lifting, carrying, standing up 
- Pushing, pulling 
- Putting down, bending down 
- Twisting, turning 
- Treading badly, twisting leg or ankle, slipping without falling 
- Other Deviations not listed above 

- Shock, fright, violence, aggression, threat, presence  
- Shock, fright 
- Violence, aggression, threat - between company employees subjected to the employer's authority 
- Violence, aggression, threat - from people external to the company towards victims performing their 

duties 
- Aggression, jostle - by animal 
- Presence of the victim or of a third person in itself creating a danger for oneself and possibly others 
- Other Deviations not listed above 

- Other Deviations not listed above in this classification.  
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10. Nature of a marine casualty or incident : 
The nature of a marine casualty or incident is separated into two different categories: 

- Occurrence with ship(s) : when a ship, its equipment or cargo is affected by an accident; and 
- Occupational accident : where the accident affects only a person. 

11. Shore assistance : 
because of a breakdown or immobilisation of the main engines or other event, the ships concerned might need 
shore assistance. 

12. Towage : 
because of a breakdown or immobilisation of the main engines or other event, the ships concerned might need 
towage. 

13. Unfit to proceed : 
means that the ship is in a condition, which does not correspond substantially with the applicable international 
conventions or national legislation, presenting a danger to the ship and the persons on board or an unreasonable 
threat of harm to the marine environment. 

14. Voyage segment : 
determines the section of the voyage being undertaken at the time of the marine casualty or incident. It can be:  

- Anchored or alongside ; 
- Departure ; 
- En route (after the departure and before arrival, when she is underway at sea);  
- Arrival ; or 
- Unknown .  
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Appendix 2  EMCIP model  

To harmonise the reporting in a meaningful and comprehensive way, a codification of the information resulting from 
marine casualties was defined. This codification provides also practical advice for a systematic investigation of 
marine casualties and incidents and allows the development of effective analysis and preventive action. It covers 
the different elements that connect the consequences of an accident to its root events. 

 

Such model is not only implemented at European level, but also at international level through the IMO resolution 
A28/Res.1075. 
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Appendix 3  EMCIP ship types  

 
  

Seiner - Handliner

Trawler-Purse seiner

Other multipurpose

Other

Cargo ship

HSC (ACV, Hydrofoil, SES, Other)

  Other

A

B

Other craft

WIG

Personal watercraft

Pontoon boat

Rowboat

Sailboat (sail only)

Sailboat (aux. motor)

Sailboat surfboards

Canoe / kayak

Gondolas / pedals

Historical craft

Houseboat

Inflatable

Motorboat

FPSO/FSU

Ice breaker

MODU

Pusher

Recreational craft

Tanker

Tug

Worksite craft

Other

Barge

Floating equipment

Floating establisment

Floating installation

Passenger

Class B

Class C

Type C

Passenger and general cargo

Inland waterway
vessel

Service ship

Passenger ship

Fishing vessel

Type A

Type B

Tug (Towing / Pushing)

Other

Navy ship

Submersible

Fixed offshore
 drilling unit

Recreational craft

Multi-purpose

Offshore supply ship

Other offshore ship

Research Ship

SAR craft

Special purpose ship

Dredger

Floating platform

Unknown

Dredger

Danish seiners

Purse seiners

Seiner netters

Tuna purse seiners

Other seiner

Beam

Pair

Side

Stern

Other trawler

Seiner

Trawler

Passenger and Ro-Ro cargo

InternationalFactory ship

Multipurpose

Class D

Port or internal waters

Potter

Only passenger

Class A

Solid cargo

Liquified gas tanker

Chemical tanker

Combination carrier

Crude oil

Gillnetter Oil tanker

Liquid cargo

Additional type
 of ship

EMCIP Ship Type

General cargo

Refrigerated cargo

Ro-Ro cargo

Heavy load carrier

Pontoon

Other

Barge

Bulk carrier

Container ship

Type 2PG

Type 3G

Type 3

Type 2

Type 1

Liner Tanker (liquid non-flammable)

Product carrier

Type 1G

Type 2G

LNG

LPG



https://webgate.ec.europa.eu/fleet-europa/index_en
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Appendix 6  List of national investigati ve bodies in the EU  

  

Member State  Name of the national investigative body  Acronym  Website  

Austria Safety Investigation Authority of Austria BAV/SUB http://www.bmvit.gv.at/  

Belgium Federal Bureau for the Investigation of Maritime 
Accidents FEBIMA https://mobilit.belgium.be/en/shipping/federal_bureau_i

nvestigation_maritime_accidents_febima 

Bulgaria Maritime Accident Investigation Unit MTITC http://www.mtitc.government.bg  

Croatia Air, Maritime and Railway Traffic Accidents 
Investigation Agency AIN www.ain.hr  

Cyprus Marine Accident and Incident Investigation 
Committee MAIC www.maic.gov.cy/mcw/dms/maic/maic.nsf/  

Czech Republic Ministry of Transport, Czech Maritime 
Administration Navigation Department MT_ND http://www.mdcr.cz  

Denmark Danish Maritime Accident Investigation Board DMAIB http://www.dmaib.com  

Estonia Safety Investigation Bureau of Estonia ESIB www.ojk.ee  

Finland Safety Investigation Authority of Finland SIA http://www.onnettomuustutkinta.fi  

France French Marine Casualties Investigation Board BEAmer http://www.bea-mer.developpement-durable.gouv.fr/  

Germany Federal Bureau of Maritime Casualty Investigation BSU http://www.bsu-bund.de  

Greece Hellenic Bureau for Marine Casualties 
Investigation HBMCI http://www.hbmci.gov.gr  

Hungary Transportation Safety Bureau of Hungary TSB http://www.kbsz.hu  

Iceland Icelandic Marine Accident Investigation Board ITSB www.rnsa.is  

Ireland Marine Casualty Investigation Board MCIB http://www.mcib.ie  

Italy General Directorate for Railway and Maritime 
Accident Investigation DIGIFEMA http://www.mit.gov.it  

Latvia Transport Accident and Incident Investigation 
Bureau TAIIB http://www.taiib.gov.lv  

Lithuania Transport Accident and Incident Investigation 
Division TAITS https://tm.lrv.lt/en/fields-of-activity/transport-accident-

and-incident-investigations 

Luxembourg Administration of Technical Investigations AET http://www.mt.public.lu/transports/AET  

Malta Marine Safety Investigation Unit MSIU https://mtip.gov.mt/en/Pages/MSIU/Marine-Safety-
Investigation-Unit.aspx  

The Netherlands Dutch Safety Board DSB www.safetyboard.nl  

Norway Norwegian Safety Investigation Authority NSIA http://www.nsia.no  

Poland State Marine Accident Investigation Commission PKBWM/SMAIC www.pkbwm.gov.pl  

Portugal Maritime Accident Investigation Office and 
Aeronautical Meteorology Authority GAMA www.gama.mm.gov.pt  

Romania Marine Accidents Investigation Department MAID http://www.mt.ro  

Slovenia Maritime Accident and Incident Investigation 
Services MAIIS https://www.gov.si/en/  

Spain Standing Commission for Maritime Accident and 
Incident Investigation CIAIM https://www.mitma.gob.es/organos-colegiados/ciaim  

Sweden Swedish Accident Investigation Authority SHK http://www.havkom.se  

http://www.bmvit.gv.at/
https://mobilit.belgium.be/en/shipping/federal_bureau_investigation_maritime_accidents_febima
https://mobilit.belgium.be/en/shipping/federal_bureau_investigation_maritime_accidents_febima
http://www.mtitc.government.bg/
http://www.ain.hr/
http://www.maic.gov.cy/mcw/dms/maic/maic.nsf/
http://www.mdcr.cz/
http://www.dmaib.com/
http://www.ojk.ee/
http://www.onnettomuustutkinta.fi/
http://www.bea-mer.developpement-durable.gouv.fr/
http://www.bsu-bund.de/
http://www.hbmci.gov.gr/
http://www.kbsz.hu/
http://www.rnsa.is/
http://www.mcib.ie/
http://www.mit.gov.it/
http://www.taiib.gov.lv/
https://tm.lrv.lt/en/fields-of-activity/transport-accident-and-incident-investigations
https://tm.lrv.lt/en/fields-of-activity/transport-accident-and-incident-investigations
http://www.mt.public.lu/transports/AET
http://www.transport.gov.mt/
http://www.safetyboard.nl/
http://www.nsia.no/
http://www.pkbwm.gov.pl/
http://www.gama.mm.gov.pt/
http://www.mt.ro/
https://www.gov.si/en/
https://www.mitma.gob.es/organos-colegiados/ciaim
http://www.havkom.se/
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,Marine casualties and incidents involving at least one EU/EEA flag state
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,"Marine casualties and incidents involving at least one EU/EEA substantially interested state, other than flag or coastal states"
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,Marine casualties and incidents reported only because there is at least one EU/EEA substantially interested state involved
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				Ships involved in marine casualties and incidents

		Cargo ship		

		2014		1314

		2015		1577

		2016		1382

		2017		1407

		2018		1433

		2019		1414

		2020		1329

		2021		1342

		Fishing vessel		

		2014		489

		2015		386

		2016		505

		2017		524

		2018		513

		2019		527

		2020		579

		2021		559

		Passenger ship		

		2014		666

		2015		644

		2016		681

		2017		662

		2018		629

		2019		753

		2020		487

		2021		561

		Service ship		

		2014		325

		2015		266

		2016		288

		2017		261

		2018		273

		2019		272

		2020		258

		2021		293

		Other ship		

		2014		80

		2015		66

		2016		69

		2017		60

		2018		114

		2019		89

		2020		87

		2021		99






 


    


    


    
    


        


        


 


   


   


   


   


    


    


    


    


    


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
  


 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
  


    


            


   


   


            
      


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


    


           


      
      


   


   


   


   


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


    


           


   


      
            


   


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


    


           


        
         


 


   


   


   


   


    


    


    


    


    


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
  


 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
  


    


          


                                                            






				Very serious		Serious		Less Serious		Marine incident

		Cargo ship								

		2014		45		321		789		159

		2015		42		330		836		369

		2016		37		373		788		184

		2017		22		328		821		236

		2018		57		393		697		286

		2019		35		328		769		282

		2020		28		316		689		296

		2021		26		312		655		349

		Fishing vessel								

		2014		28		294		135		32

		2015		32		168		161		25

		2016		30		253		193		29

		2017		26		252		218		28

		2018		37		263		178		35

		2019		33		275		203		16

		2020		20		295		251		13

		2021		20		276		232		31

		Passenger ship								

		2014		12		182		436		36

		2015		5		148		435		56

		2016		9		143		471		58

		2017		5		143		459		55

		2018		10		122		425		72

		2019		5		133		548		67

		2020		3		75		345		64

		2021		2		105		353		101

		Service ship								

		2014		14		105		178		28

		2015		10		84		151		21

		2016		7		84		172		25

		2017		9		70		155		27

		2018		6		87		126		54

		2019		7		56		161		48

		2020		3		47		155		53

		2021		6		60		177		50

		Other ship								

		2014		9		13		53		5

		2015		1		6		52		7

		2016		3		16		41		9

		2017		2		11		43		4

		2018		8		21		64		21

		2019		4		16		51		18

		2020		2		18		54		13

		2021		2		19		66		12
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